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Independent Auditor’'s Report

To the Members of Taron Material Handling Equipments Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Taron Material Handling Equipments Private
Limited (‘the Company'), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025, the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in
Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy
information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2025
and its loss (including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI’) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Directors Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

ZANNDIO

Chartered Accountants Walker Chandiok & Co LLP is registered
with limited liability with identification

Offices in A i, Bengaluru, Chandigarh, Chenna, Dehradun, Goa, Gurugram, Hyderabad, Indore, Kochi, Kolkata, Mumbai, number AAC-2085 and has its ragistered

New Delhi, Noida and Pune office at L-41, Connaught Cireus, Outer

Circle, New Delhi, 110001, India



Taron Material Handling Equipments Private Limited
Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the financial statements

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Company’s Board of Directors. The
Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation and presentation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls;

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

o Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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Taron Material Handling Equipments Private Limited
Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the financial statements

If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern;
and

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we report that the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not
applicable to the Company since the Company is not a public company as defined under section 2(71) of the
Act. Accordingly, reporting under section 197(16) is not applicable.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act we give in the Annexure | a statement on the matters specified
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

Further to our comments in Annexure |, as required by section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit, we report,
to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying financial statements;

b) Except for the matters stated in paragraph 12(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion, proper books of account as required by
law have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

c) The financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section 133 of the
Act;

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the Board
of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2025 from being appointed as a director
in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

f) The qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as
stated in paragraph 12(b) above on reporting under section 143(3)(b) of the Act and paragraph 12(h)(vi)
below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended);

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the
Company as on 31 March 2025 and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in Annexure 1l wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigation which would impact its financial position as at 31

March 2025;
Chartered Accountants Walker Chandiok & Co LLP is registered
with limited liability with identification
Offices in Ahmedabad luru, Chandigarh, Chennai, Dehradun, Goa, Gurugram, Hyderabad, Indore, Kochi, Kolkata, Mumbai, number AAC-2085 and has ils registered
Wew Delhi, Noida and Pune office at L-41, Connaught Circus, Quter

Circle, New Delhi, 110001, India



Taron Material Handling Equipments Private Limited
Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the financial statements

Vi.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2025;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2025;

a. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in Note

45(iv) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or securities premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or
in any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the intermediaries’), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company (‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries') or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in Note

45(v) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s)
or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the Funding Parties’), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c. Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate in the

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the management
representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March 2025.

As stated in Note 50 to the financial statements and based on our examination which included test
checks, except for instance mentioned below, the Company, in respect of financial year commencing
on 1 April 2024, has used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has been operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did
not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with, other than the consequential
impact of the exception given below. Furthermore, except for instance mentioned below the audit
trail, has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention
where the audit trail feature was enabled

Chartered Accountants Walker Chandick & Co LLP is registered

Offices in At

with limited liability with identification

d, Bengalury, Chandigarh, Chennai, Dehradun, Goa, Gurugram, Hyderabad, Indore, Kochi, Kolkata, Mumbal, number AAC-2085 and has ils registered

New Delhi, Noida and Pune office at L-41, Connaught Circus, Quter

Circle, New Delhi, 110001, India



Taron Material Handling Equipments Private Limited
Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the financial statements

Nature of exception noted Details of Exception

Instances of accounting software for maintaining books | The audit trail feature was not enabled at the
of account for which the feature of recording audit trail | database level for accounting software used for
(edit log) facility was not operated throughout the year | accounting records for the period 1 April 2024 to 14
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software November 2024 and was subsequently observed to
be periodically disabled for a few days each month.
Accordingly, we are unable to comment whether the
audit trail feature of the said software was operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registrgtion No.: 001076N/N500013

Rakesh R.
Partner
Membership No.: 109632

UDIN: 25109632BMLCUP9639

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27 June 2025
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Taron Material Handling Equipments Private Limited
Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the financial statements

Annexure | referred to in paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members
of Taron Material Handling Equipments Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2025

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of account
and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we
report that:

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of property, plant and equipment and relevant details of right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its property, plant and equipment and
relevant details of right-of-use assets under which the assets are physically verified in a phased
manner over a period of two years, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets. In accordance with this program, certain property, plant and
equipment relevant details of right-of-use assets were verified during the year and no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The title deeds of all the inmovable properties held by the Company (other than properties where the
Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), disclosed
in Note 3 to the financial statements, are held in the name of the Company.

(d) The Company has adopted cost model for its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right-of-use
assets) and intangible assets. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended) and rules
made thereunder.

(i) (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during the
year. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate
and no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed as
compared to book records.

(b) As disclosed in Note 48 to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned a working
capital limit in excess of ¥ 5 crores by banks based on the security of current assets. The quarterly
statements, in respect of the working capital limits have been filed by the Company with such banks
and such statements are in agreement with the books of account of the Company for the respective
periods which were not subject to audit/ review, except for the following:

3 NI N ":‘Q\

/ ; =M €
el Q;‘ \i )
\ MUMEAI

Chartered Accountants Walker Chandiok & Co LLP is registered
with limited liability with identification

Offices in Ahmedabad, galuru, Chand Chennai, Dehradun, Goa, Gurugram, Hyderabad, Indore, Kochi, Kelkata, Mumbal, number AAC-2085 and has ils registered

New Delhi, Noida and Pune office at L-41, Connaught Circus, Outer

Circle, New Delhi, 110001, India



Taron Material Handling Equipments Private Limited
Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Audit of the financial statements

(% in lakhs)

Name | Working Nature of | Quarter Information Information Difference | Reason for |

of capital limit | current ended disclosed as | as per books material

Bank sanctioned | assets per of accounts variances

offered as statement
security
Icicl 500 Ll 30 June 1,599.38 1,667.29 67.91
Bank receivable | o904
Inventory 188.49 188.49 :
IcICl - Trade oo | 20 1,939.72 2,128.61 188.89
Bank lrecel\ia 5 September Refer Note
nventory -
2024 296.91 296.91 48 of the

Axis 500 | race e | ¥ 2,247.52 2,408.74 161.22 ﬂﬁ"‘“al

Bank i receivable | nocember statements

inventory | 504 363.11 363.11 =

; Trade
gzl:k 1,500 | receivable | 31 March 1,808.49 2.312.22 345.87
Inventory | 2025 341.73 341.73 .

(iii) The Company has not made any investment in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any
loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships (LLPs) or any other parties during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(jii) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iv) The Company has not entered into any transaction covered under sections 185 and 186 of the Act.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(v) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not

accepted any deposits or there are no amounts which have been deemed to be deposits within the
meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as
amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vi)  The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section

148 of the Act, in respect of Company's products/ services / business activities. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

(vii) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, undisputed statutory dues

(b)

including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax,
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues,
as applicable, have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities by the
Company, though there have been slight delays in a few cases. Further, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that there are no statutory dues
referred in sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account
of any dispute except for the following:
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Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the financial statements

(viii)

(ix) (2)

(b)

(d)

Name of | Nature Gross Amount paid Period to | Forum where
the of dues | Amount under Protest | which the | dispute is pending
statute (¥ in lakhs) | (Z in lakhs) amount

relates
Central CESTAT 40.72 Nil | FY 2020-21 NA, The Company is
Goods & in the process of
Services appealing  against
Tax  Act, this order
2017

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that no transactions were
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961 (43 of 1961) which have not been previously recorded in the books of accounts.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of jts borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us including representation received from the
management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the Company
has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any
government authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money raised by way of
term loans were applied for the purpaoses for which these were obtained.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised by the Company on short term
basis have, prima facie, not been utilised for long term purposes.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the Company does not have

any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) and clause
3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including

debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company. )

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the

(xi)(a)

records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or (fully, partially or optionally) convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud
by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the period covered
by our audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us by

the management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Act has been
filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014, with the Central Government for the period covered by our audit.

10
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Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the financial statements

(c)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xvi)

According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us by
the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the Company
during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions entered
into by the Company, with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the Act. The details
of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required under
Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specified in Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed under section 133 of the Act. Further, according to
the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to constitute an audit
committee under section 177 of the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to and
consequently, does not have an internal audit system as per the provisions of section 138 of the Act.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-
cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xv) of the Order with respect to compliance with the provisions of section 192 of the
Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

(d) Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management of the

(xvii)

Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016)
does not have any CIC.

The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year as well as the immediately
preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting under

(xix)

clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing
and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
in the financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors and management and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however,
state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor
any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will
get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.
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(xx) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has met the criteria as specified
under sub-section (1) of section 135 of the Act read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy) Rules, 2014, however, in the absence of average net profits in the immediately three preceding
years, there is no requirement for the Company to spend any amount under sub-section (5) of section
135 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xxi) The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of Standalone financial
statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said clause under
this report.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Rakesh R. AGarwal
Partner
Membership No.: 109632

UDIN: 25109632BMLCUP9639

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27 June 2025
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Annexure Il to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Taron Material Handling
Equipments Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Independent Auditor's Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of Taron Material Handling Equipments Private
Limited (‘the Company’) as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025, we have audited the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements of the Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (‘Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (‘ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of the Company’s business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial
Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
issued by the ICAI prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements, and the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
‘controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of such internal financial
controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
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Taron Material Handling Equipments Private Limited
Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the financial statements

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2025, based on with reference
to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registra No.: 001076N/N500013

Rakesh R. Agarwal
Partner
Membership No.: 109632

UDIN: 25109632BMLCUP9639

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27 June 2025
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Taron Material Handling Equipments Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025
(Amount in ¥ lakhs, except for share data, and if otherwise stated)

Particulars Note As at As at
No. 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 12,061.10 9,695.77
Right-of-use assets 43 246.18 326.58
Goodwill 4 4.182.36 4,182.36
Intangible assets 4 (a) 995.45 1,078.58
Financial assets
Other financial assets 5 105,38 40.48
Non-current tax assets (net) 6 281.37 120.86
Other non-current assets 7 548.96 981.46
Total non-current assets (A) 18,420.80 16,426.09
Current assets
Inventaries 8 341.73 135.32
Financial assets
Investments ] - 33.99
Trade receivables 10 231222 1,598.49
Cash and cash equivalents 11 1,323.81 327.83
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents above 12 74.71 25.63
Other financial assets 5 106.38 -
Other current assets 13 282.43 691.66
4,441.28 2,812.92
Assets held for sale 14 246.32 -
Total current assets (B) 4,687.60 2,812.92
Total assets (A+B) 23,108.40 19,239.01
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 15 73.33 73.33
Other equity 16 (23.08) 216.85
Total equity (A) 50.25 290.18
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 17 18,543.55 14,162.32
Lease liabilities 43 198.72 268.67
Provisions 18 107.42 45,84
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 19 150.15 255.00
Total non-current liabilities (B) 18,999.84 14,731.83
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 20 1,994.26 2,233.12
Lease liabilities 43 64.85 57.99
Trade payables 21
-Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 20.37 17.57
-Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 716.42 B62.77
Other financial liabilities 22 709.34 888.73
Other current liabilities 23 474.97 84.38
Provisions 24 78.10 72.44
Total current liabilities (C) "4,058.31 4,217.00
Total liabilities (B+C) 23,058.15 18,948.83
Total equity and liabilities (A+B+C) 23,108.40 19,239.01
Material accounting policy information 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our audit report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accoumtants
Firm Registratig, . D01076N/N5S00013

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Taron Material Handling Equipments Private Limited

Director
DIN: 06808369

[
Bindu Mathew

Director e
DIN: 07007514 :

Rakesh R.Xgarwal
Pariner
Membership No.:109632 /

Place: Mumbai
Date : 27 June 2025

Place: Mumbai
Dale : 27 June 2025



Taron Material Handling Equipments Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in ¥ lakhs, except for share data, and if otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
Paislars IS, 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Income
Revenue from operations 25 8,964.85 6,769.07
Other income 26 76.48 52.12
Total income 9,041.33 6,821.19
Expenses
Purchase of stock-in-trade 27 - 266.47
Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade 28 - 38.89
Employee benefits expense 29 4,921.20 3,354.56
Finance costs 30 1,803.25 1,228.30
Depreciation and amortisalion expenses 31 1,370.20 73415
Other expenses 32 1,246.19 1,897.62
Total expenses 9,340.84 7,519.99
Loss before tax (299.51) (698.80)
Tax expense / (credit) 33
(i) Current tax (1.51) 1.85
(iii) Deferred tax {93.08) (327.85)
Total tax credit (94.59) (325.80)
Net loss for the year (A) (204.92) (373.00)
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss, net of tax
Loss on fair value of defined benefit plans 34 (46.78) (3.88)
Income tax relating to above 11.77 0.98
Other comprehensive loss for the year (B) (35.01) (2.90)
Total comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax (A+B) (239.93) (375.90)
Loss per equity share of face value of ¥ 10 each 35
Basic and diluted (in %) (27.95) (50.87)

Material accounting policy information
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our audit report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Acgauntants

f No. 001076N/N500013

Rakesh R. Agarwal
Partner
Membership No.: 108632

Place: Mumbai
Date : 27 June 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Taron Material Handling Equipments Private Limited

w

Sunu Mathew
Director
DIN: 068083869

Place: Mumbai
Date : 27 June 2025

Bindu Mathew
Director
DIN: 07007514




Taron Material Handling Equipments Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in ¥ lakhs, except for share data, and if otherwise stated)

: Year ended Year ended
Ee g S 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
A, Cash flow from operating activities:
Loss before tax (299.51) (698.80)
Adjustments for:
Deprecialion and amortisation expenses i 1,370.20 734.15
Interest income on bank deposils 26 (11.46) {1.08)
Interest income financial assets measured at amorlised cost 26 (2.30) (1.06)
Finance cosls 30 1,803.25 1.228.30
Provision for doubtful debts 32 - 65.08
Gain on fair valuation of current investments 26 - (3.78)
Excess provision wrilten back 25 (18.11) -
Gain from sale of investment in debenture and bonds 26 {2.41) (16.97)
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) 28 (10.47) (19.42)
Operating profit before working capital changes and other adjustments 2,829.19 1,286.41
Adjustment for changes in working capital:
Increase in lrade receivables (695.62) . (521.21)
Decreasef{increase) in other financial assels, other non-current and current assels 838.62 (409,03)
(Increase)/ decrease in invenlories (206.41) 26.51
Increase in financial liabilities and other liabilities 35.91 721,73
Net cash flow generated from operations 2,801.69 1,104.41
Direct taxes paid (net) 6 (159.00) (150.83)
Net cash flow generated from operating activities (A) 2,642.69 953.58
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (including movement in capilal advances, (3.961.47) (5,218.60)
intangible assets, and capital creditors)
Purchase consideralion paid towards business combination 49 - (208.03)
Purchase of Intangible assels under development
Proceeds from sale of investmenls 36.40 280.11
Proceeds from sale of properly, plant and equipment and assels held for sale 205.83 75.72
{Investment in) / receipts from maturity in fixed deposils (217.26) 0.57
Interest income 26 13.76 1.09
Net cash flow used in investing activities (B) (3,922.74) (5,169.14)
C. Cash flow from financing activities:
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 171 11,870.80 6,884.23
Met (repayment) / proceeds from shori-term borrowings 171 (552.39) 222.66
Repayment of long-lerm borrowings 174 (7.920.77) (2,196.97)
Principal repayment of lease liabilities 174 (63.09) (26.77)
Finance cost (1,058.52) (711.45)
Net cash flow generated from financing activities (C) 2,276.03 4,171.70
Increase | (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 995.98 (43.86)
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 327.83 371.69
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year 1,323.81 327.83
Components of cash and cash equivalents: (Refer note 11)
Balances with banks
- in current accounts 1" 87.86 327.83
- in deposit accounts with malurity up to three months 1 1.235.95 -
Total 1,323.81 327.83

Notes:
The Statement of Cash Flow has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 7 statement of cash flows.
Figures in brackets represent outflow of cash and cash equivalents.

The accompanying noles are an integral part of these financial stat

This is the Stalement of Cash Flow referred to in our audit report of even date

& ColLLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Taron Material Handling Equipments Private Limited

For Walker Chandia
Charlered Accounia
Firm Registralion
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Rakesh R. Ag Sunu Mathew Bindu Mathew
Parlner Director Director
Membership No.:109632 DIN: 06808369 DIN: 07007514

Place: Mumbai
Date : 27 June 2025

Place: Mumbai
Date : 27 June 2025




Taron Material Handling Equipments Private Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in ¥ fakhs, except for share data, and if otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital (Refer note 15)

Particulars Number of shares Amount
As at 01 April 2023 733,270 73.33
Movemaent during the year - E
As at 31 March 2024 733.270 73.33
Movement during the year - -
As at 31 March 2025 733,270 73.33
B Other equity (Refer note 16)
Reserve and surplus
Particulars Securities Retained sarnings Total
premium
Bal as at 01 April 2023 673.27 (80.52) 592.75
Loss for the year = {373.00) (373.00)
Other comprehensive income for the year {net of lax) - (2.90) (2.90)
Closing balance as at 31 March 2024 673.27 (456.42) 216.85
Loss for the year - {204.92) (204.92)
Other comprehensive income for the year {net of tax) - (35.01) (35.01)
Closing balance as at 31 March 2025 673.27 (696.35) (23.08)|

The panying notes are an integral pari of these financial statements

This is the Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our audit
report of even dale,

Chartered Accountg

Firm Registration Mo, 00]076N/NS00013

Rakesh R. Agapfal
i No.: 109632

Place: Mumbai
Dale : 27 June 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Taron Material Handling Equipments Private Limited

W’V“""MW B:——/”

Sunu Mathew
Director
DIN: D6B0B369

Bindu Mathew
Director
DIN: 07007514

Place; Mumbai
Date : 27 June 2025




Taron Material Handling Equipments Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in ¥ lakhs, except for share data, and if otherwise stated)

2.1

2.2

2.3

Corporate information

Taron Material Handling Equipments Private Limited ("the Company" or "TMHEPL") (CIN: U74999MH2018PTC313884) is a wholly owned subsidiary
of LEAP India Private Limited ("LIPL"). The Company was incorporated in India on 11 September 2018 as a Private Limited Company and is
primarily engaged in the business of providing services related to renting of material handling equipments and providing supply chain services.

The registered office of the Company is located at 14th Floor, Commerz, International Business Park. Oberoi Garden City, Off Western Express
Highway, Goregaon East, Mumbai, Maharashtra, India, 400063.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2025, were authorised for issue in accordance with the resolution of the Board
of Directors on 27 June 2025.

Material accounting policy information:

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared to comply in all material respects with the Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS") as
prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act) read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as amended from
time to time notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. The Company has uniformly applied the accounting policies for all
the periods presented in these financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India. Further,
the financial statements have been prepared on historical cost convention except for certain financial assets and financial liabilities which are
measured at fair values and employee benefit plans which are measured using actuarial valuation as explained in relevant accounting policy, on
accrual basis of accounting.

The statement of cash flow has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 7) statement of cash
flows.

Operating cycle for current and non-current classification

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current, wherever applicable, as per the operating cycle of the Company as per the
guidance set out in Schedule lll to the Companies Act, 2013.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

« Expected to be realised or consumed in normal operating cycle

+ Held primarily for the purpose of trading

+ Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

« Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

« |t is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

« It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

« |t is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

+ There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve manths after the reporting period

Operating cycle for the business activities of the Company is based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for sale
and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has ascertained its operating cycle as upto twelve months for the purpose of current
and non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, at fair value at each balance sheet date,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in
its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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Taron Material Handling Equipments Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in & lakhs, except for share data, and if otherwise stated)

2.4

25

2.6

The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. All assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
{i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-
assessed as per the Company's accounting policies. For this analysis, the Management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by
agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The Management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether the
change is reasonable.

Plant, property and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition including attributable interest and finance costs, if any, till the date of acquisition/
installation of the assets less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost of acquisition comprises the purchase price and any
directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at
the purchase price.

Subsequent expenditure relating to Property, plant and equipment is capitalised only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other expenses on existing plant, property and
equipment including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for
the period during which such expenses are incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements, either on
disposal or when retired from active use. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Intangible assets
Identifiable intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits attributed to the asset will flow to the Company and the
cost of the asset can be reliably measured.

Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any. The cost of an intangible asset comprises of its
purchase price, including any import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from the taxing authorities), and any directly
attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future
economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite life is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss under the head 'Depreciation and amortization expense’.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal.

Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is not amortised but it is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that it might be impaired and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an
entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing, The allocation is made to those cash-generating units or groups
of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the business combination in which the goodwill arose. The units or groups of units are
identified at the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.

Goodwill is tested for impairment, relying on a number of factors including operating results, business plans and future cash flows. Calculating the
future net cash flows expected to be generated to determine if impairment exists and to calculate impairment involves significant assumptions,
estimation and judgement. The estimated cash flows are prepared using internal forecasts.
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Taron Material Handling Equipments Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in ¥ lakhs, except for share data, and if otherwise stated)

2.7 Depreciation and amortization

2.8

Depreciation is provided for property, plant and equipment so as to expense the cost less residual value over their estimated useful lives on a straight
line method. Intangible assets are amortised from the date they are available for use, over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives are
as mentioned below:

Class of Asset Useful life estimated by
Management (years)
Forklifts and attachments Jto 10
Batteries 5to0 10
Computer 3
Furniture & fixtures 10
Motor vehicles 5to 10
Building 30 to 60
Plant & equipments 20
Office equipments 5
Computer Software 3
Trademarks 3
Customer Relationship 15

Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 prescribes useful lives for property, plant and equipment and allows Companies to use higher/ lower useful
lives and residual values if such useful lives and residual values can be technically supported and justification for difference is disclosed in the
financial statements. The management believes that the depreciation rates currently used fairly reflect its estimate of the useful lives and residual
values of property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation/ amortisation on property plant and equipment has been provided on the straight-line method as per the useful life assessed based on
technical advice, taking into account the nature of the asset, the estimated use of the asset on the basis of management's best estimation of getting
economic benefits from those class of assets.

The Company uses its external technical expertise along with historical and industry trends for arriving at the economic life of an asset. The estimated
useful life and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and the effect of any change in the estimates of useful life/residual value is
accounted on prospective basis.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.
Depreciation on additions is provided on a pro-rata basis, from the date on which asset is ready to use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are accounted in the Statement of Profit and
Loss under other income or other expenses.

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

In the case of financial assets, not recorded at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVPL), financial assets other than trade receivable, are recognised
initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss. Purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way
trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subseqguent measurement
For purposes of subseguent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories:




Taron Material Handling Equipments Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in ¥ lakhs, except for share data, and if otherwise stated)

i. Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal
amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The
EIR amortisation is included in interest income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

ii. Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL.
For all other equity instruments, the Company decides to classify the same either as at FVTOCI or FVTPL. The Company makes such election on an
instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are
recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale of investment. However, the
Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
The Company has classified its investments in mutual funds as Investments at FVTPL.

Derecognition

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and
an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of financial assets
The Company applies expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. The application of simplified approach
does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month
ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade receivables. The
provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking
estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This
amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses' in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Equity instruments and financial liabilities
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
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2.9

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments which are issued for cash are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Equity instruments which are issued for
consideration other than cash are recorded at fair value of the equity instrument.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Al financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of financial liabilities at amortized cost, net of directly attributable transaction
costs.

Subseguent measurement

All financial liabilities except derivatives are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability,
or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and setle the liabilities simultaneously.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements. The revenue is recognized net of goods and service tax (if
any).

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of the Company's care products forklifts is recognised when delivery has taken place and control of the goods has been
transferred to the customer, and when there are no longer any unfulfilled obligations. The customer obtains control of the goods when the significant
risks and rewards of products sold are transferred to the customer, and the Company has the present right to payment all of which occurs at the point
the goods are delivered to and accepted by the customer, according to the specific delivery terms that have been agreed with the customer.

Rendering of services

Income from services rendered is recognised based on agreements/arrangements with the customers as the service is performed and there are no
unfulfilled obligations. Revenue from property, plant and equipment given on lease to customers are recognised on per day rent, basis the terms of
the agreement.

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of
income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Other income is recognised as and when due or received, whichever is earlier.

Unbilled revenue

Unbilled receivables (only act of invoicing is pending) when there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time is required, as per
contractual terms and is accordingly classified under 'contract assets'. Unearned (“contract liability") is recognised when there are billings in excess of
revenues.
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-

Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits such as salaries, wages, performance incentives etc. are recognised as expenses at the undiscounted amounts in the
Statement of Profit and Loss of the period in which the related service is rendered. Expenses on non-accumulating compensated absences is
recognised in the period in which the absences occur.

Defined contribution plan

Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as provident fund and employees' state insurance are charged as an expense based on the
amount of contribution required to be made as and when services are rendered by the employee's provident fund contribution is made to a
government administered fund and charged as an expense to the Statement of Profit and Loss. The above benefits are classified as Defined
Contribution Schemes as the Company has no further obligations beyond the monthly contributions,

Defined benefit plan

The Company's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the
calculation results in a potential asset for the Company, the recognized asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form
of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. To calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration
is given to any applicable minimum funding requirements.

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding
interest), are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income (OCI). Net interest expensel/(income) on the net defined liability/(asset) is
computed by applying the discount rate, used to measure the net defined liability/(asset). Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined
benefit plans are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service or the gain or loss on
curtailment is recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company recognizes gains and losses on the settlement of a defined
benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

Leave entitlement and compensated balances

Accumulated leave which is expected to be utilised within next twelve months, is treated as short-term employee benefit. The leave entitiement
obligation that is considered long term in nature, is measured based on an actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, on similar lines
as gratuity. Short term leave benefit is measured on an undiscounted basis on the same lines as other Short term employee benefits. The leave
entitlement obligation is an unfunded benefit at present.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs relating to acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset which takes substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use are added to the cost of such asset to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready to be put to use. Other borrowing
costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which it is accrued. Any ancillary cost incurred in connection with the
arrangement of borrowings are amortised over the period of such borrowings.

Inventories
Inventory of traded goods, consumables and stores and spares are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost includes cost of purchase
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on a weighted average basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Leases

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for buildings (warehouse) and equipment. The Company assesses at contract
inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.
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2.14

Company as a lessee:

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.
The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

The Company accounts for each separate lease companent of a contract and any associated non-lease components as a single lease component by
allocating all of contract consideration to the lease component.

i) Right-of-use assets

At the commencement date, the right of use assets is measured at cost. The cost includes an amount equal to the lease liabilities plus adjusted for
the amount of prepaid or accrued lease payments. After the commencement date, the right-of-use assels is measured in accordance with the
accounting policy for property, plant and equipment i.e. right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease term.In addition, the carrying amount of Right-of-use assets is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
the in- substance fixed lease payments or a change in the assessments to purchase the underlying asset.

ii) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over
the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made.In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
madification, a change in the lease term, a change in the in- substance fixed lease payments or a change in the assessments to purchase the
underlying asset.

iii) Lease term

At the commencement date, the Company determines the lease term which represents non-cancellable period of initial lease for which the asset is
expected to be used, together with the periods covered by an option to extend or terminate the lease, if the Company is reasonably certain at the
commencement date to exercise the extension or termination option.

In event of termination of lease, the remaining lease liability and the unamortised value of the right of use asset are charged to the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

iv) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its shart-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to
leases that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term or another systematic basis which is more representative of the pattern of use of underlying asset.

Company as a lessor :

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases.
Assets subject to operating leases are included in fixed assets. Lease income on an operating lease is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss
on rendering of the service related to the hire of pallets and foldable large containers as per the agreement with customers. Costs, including
depreciation, are recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Initial direct costs such as legal costs, brokerage costs, etc. are
recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss (excluding OCI) for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a right issue, share split and reserve share splits (consolidation of shares) that
have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

Diluted eamings per share is computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) for the year as adjusted for dividend, interest and other changes to expense and
income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for
deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of dilutive
potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per
share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they
have been issued at a later date.
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2.15

2.16
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Taxes

Current tax

Current tax is recognised based on the estimated tax liability computed after taking credit for allowances and exemptions in accordance with the
Income Tax Act, 1961, Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from, or
paid to, the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted, or substantively enacted, at the
reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the
entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Income tax expense comprises of current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability during the period. Current and deferred
taxes are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity, Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts.

Deferred tax is determined by applying the Balance Sheet approach. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences between the financial statements’ carrying amount of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax base. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are measured using the enacted tax rates or tax rates that are substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date. The effect on deferred tax
assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognised in the periad that includes the enactment date.

Deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date to reassess realisation.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India, to the extent it would be available for set off
against future current income tax liability. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as deferred tax asset in the balance sheet when the asset can be
measured reliably and it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with the asset will be realised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities. Current tax assets and
tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based on intemnal/external factors. An
impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of
the assets, net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the asset.

In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model is used. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful
life.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events and it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of obligation. Provisions (excluding gratuity and compensated absences) are determined based on management's estimate required to settle
the obligation at the Balance Sheet date. In case the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects the risks specific to the liability, When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance
cost. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current management estimates.
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2.19

2.20

2.2

Contingent liabilities, contingent assets and capital commitments

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events, whose existence would be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one ar more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements. However, it is disclosed only when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
Capital commitments are future liabilities for contractual expenditure, classified and disclosed as estimated amount of contracts remaining to be
executed on capital account and not provided for.

The Company exercises judgement in determining if a particular matter is possible, probable or remote. The Company exercises judgement in
measuring and recognizing provisions and the exposures to contingent liabilities related to pending litigation or other outstanding claims subject to
negotiated settlement, mediation, government regulation, as well as other contingent liabilities. Judgement is necessary in assessing the likelihood
that a pending claim will succeed, or a liability will arise, and to quantify the possible range of the financial settlement.

Share issue expenses
Share issue expenses are charged off against available balance in the Securities premium reserve.

Business combination

Business combinations, other than common control business combinations, are accounted for using the purchase (acquisition) method. The cost of
an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets transferred, liabilities incurred or assumed and equity instruments issued at the date of
exchange by the Company. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at fair value at the date of acquisition. Transaction costs incurred in connection with a business acquisition are expensed as incurred. The cost
of an acquisition also includes the fair value of any contingent consideration measured as at the date of acquisition. Any subsequent changes to the
fair value of contingent consideration classified as liabilities, other than measurement period adjustments, are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss. Goodwill represents the cost of acquired business as established at the date of acquisition of the business in excess of the acquirer's
interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Goodwill is tested
for impairment annually or when events or circumstances indicate that the implied fair value of goodwill is less than the carrying amount.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with amended Schedule |1l to the Companies Act 2013.

Other accounting policy information

2,22 Foreign currency tr tions and bal

2.23

(i) Initial recognition
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the
reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

{ii} Conversion

Foreign currency monetary items are translated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary items which are measured in
terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and non-monetary
items which are carried at fair value denominated in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates that existed when the values were
determined.

(iii} Exchange differences
Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent it treated as an
adjustment to borrowing costs.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise the net amount of short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
(short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less) and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value, chegues on hand and
balances with banks. They are held for the purposes of meeting short-term cash commitments (rather than for investment or other purposes).

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short- term deposits, as defined above.
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2.24 Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The chief
operating decision maker regularly monitors and reviews the operating results of the whole Company as one segment since the Company's business
operations falls within a single operating segment of pooling (for hire), trading of pallets and crates and services related thereto. Accordingly, the
Company operation is a single segment in terms of its products. Thus, as defined in Ind AS 108 "Operating Segments”, the Company's entire
business falls under this one operational segment and hence the necessary information has already been disclosed in the Balance Sheet and the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.25 Assets held for sale
The Company classifies assets as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms
that are usual and customary for sales of such asset and its sale is highly probable. Such assets or group of assets / liabilities are presented
separately in the Balance Sheet, in the line “Assets held for sale” and “Liabilities held for sale” respectively. Once classified as held for sale, intangible
assets and PPE are no longer amortised or depreciated. Such assets or disposal groups held for sale are stated at the lower of carrying amount and
fair value less costs to sell.

2.26 New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments Adopted by the Company
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA') notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended 31st March 2025, MCA has notified amendments to Ind AS 116 — Leases, relating
to sale and leaseback transactions, which is applicable to the Company w.e.f. 1st April. 2024, The Company has reviewed the new pronouncements
and based on its evaluation has determined that it is not likely to have any significant impact in its financial statements.

2.27 New Standards and amendments to existing Standards which are issued but are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the
Company
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. MCA, via notification dated 7 May 2025, announced amendments to the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2025. These
changes are made under the Companies Act, 2013, in consultation with the National Financial Reporting Authority. These amendments are not
expected to have a material impact on the Company or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions

Amendment to Ind AS 21 = The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates— The key amendments include definition of whether a currency is
exchangeable, and the process by which an entity should assess this exchangeability, provide guidance on estimation of spot exchange rate in cases
where currency is not exchangeable and additional disclosure requirements.

2(a) Critical estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in confarmity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS requires the management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying
disclosure and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting eslimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and future periods are affected.
Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company
based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the
Company. Such changes are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements.

i. Revenue recognition
Refer note 2.9

ii. Useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the Company. The charge in respect
of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset's expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of
its life. The useful lives and residual values of Company's assets are determined by the management at the time the asset is acquire and
reviewed periodically, including at each reporting date.

g
ACG

K
N2




Taron Material Handling Equipments Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in ¥ lakhs, except for share data, and if otherwise stated)

vi.

vii.

viii.

i,

Deferred tax assets

In assessing the realisability of deferred income tax assets, management considers whether some portion or all of the deferred income tax
assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred income tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income
during the periods in which the temporary differences become deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversals of deferred income
tax liabilities, projected future taxable income and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. Based on the level of historical taxable
income and projections for future taxable income over the periods in which the deferred income tax assets are deductible, management believes
that the Company will realize the benefits of those deductible differences. The amount of the deferred income tax assets considered realizable,
however, could be reduced in the near term if estimates of future taxable income during the carry forward period are reduced.

Defined benefit obligations and compensated absences

The cost and present value of the gratuity obligation and compensated absences are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial
valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the
discount rate, future salary increases, attrition rate and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature,
a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Leases

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. Identification of a lease required
significant judgement. The Company uses significant judgement in assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable
discount rate. The Company revises the lease term if there is a change in non-cancellable period of a lease.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and capital commitments

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present (legal or constructive) obligation as result of a past event and it is probable that the
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount can be reliably estimated. These are reviewed at each balance
sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Impairment of non financial assets:

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or class of assets exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less
costs of disposal and its value in use. There is significant estimation uncertainty in determining recoverable value. Recoverable value is taken as
higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell.

Impairment of financial assets:

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected cash loss. The Company uses
judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on Company's past history, existing
market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Business combinations and intangible assets

Business combinations are accounted for using Ind AS 103, Business Combinations. Ind AS 103 requires the identifiable intangible assets and
contingent consideration to be fair valued in order to ascertain the net fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the
acquiree. Significant estimates are required to be made in determining the value of contingent consideration and intangible assets. These
valuations are conducted by valuation experts.

Employees stock option plan:

The Company recognizes expense relating to share based payment in net profit using fair value in accordance with ind AS 102-Share Based
Payment. The grant date fair value of options granted to employees is recognized as an employee expense, with a corresponding increase in
equity, over the period that the employees become unconditionally entitled to the options. Equity settled share based compensation benefits are
provided to employees under the employee stock option schemes/plans. The fair value of options granted under such schemes/plans is
recognised as an employee benefits expense with a corresponding increase in equity as "Share options outstanding account”. The total amount
to be recognised is determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted: - including any market performance conditions (e.g., the
entity's share price)

- excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions (e.g. profitability, sales growth targets and an employee of
the entity continuing over a specified time period) and

-including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (e.g. the requirement for employees to hold shares for a specific period of time).

The total expenses are amortised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be
satisfied. At the end of each period, the entity revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest based on the service and
non-market performance vesting conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity. In case vested options are forfeited / expires unexercised. the related balance
standing to the credit of the “Share options outstanding account” is transferred to "Retained earnings".

Goodwill impairment
The Company estimates the value in use of the cash generating unit (CGU) based on the future cash flows after considering current economic
conditions and trends, estimated future operating results and anticipated future economic and regulatory conditions.
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Taron Material Handling Equipments Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Amount in ¥ lakhs, except for share data, and if otherwise stated)

4 Goodwill
Particulars e Ra at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Carrying value at the beginning of the year 4,182.36 4,182.36
Carrying value at the end of the year 4,182.36 4,182.36
Goodwill has been allocated in the following CGUs:
Renting of Forklift business 4,182.36 4,182.36

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to the Cash
Generating Units (CGU), which benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. The chief operating decision maker
reviews the goodwill for any impairment at the CGU's level.

The recoverable amount of a CGU is the higher of its fair value less cost to sell and its value-in-use, both of which
are calculated by the Company using a discounted cash flow analysis. These calculations use pre tax cash flow
projections over a period of ten years, based on financial budgets approved by the management, considering various
factors such as growth trends, growth and margin projections, terminal growth rates and useful life of forklifts. For
calculation of the recoverable amount, the Company has used the following rates.

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Renting of Forklift business

- Growth rate 5% - 15% 8.40%

- Discount rate 12.80% 18.80%
The above discount rate is based on the weighted average cost of capital of the subsidiary of the Company. These
estimates are likely to differ from future actual results of operations and cash flows.

An analysis of sensitivity of the computation to a change in key parameters (operating margins and discount rate)
based on reasonably probable assumptions, did not identify any probable scenario in which recoverable amount of
the CGU would decrease below its carrying amount.

As at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024, the estimated recoverable amount of the CGU exceeded its carrying
amount, hence impairment is not friggered.

(Thix page has heen left blank ieenttonally)




Taron Material Handling Equipments Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025
{Amount ¥ in lakhs, except for share data, and if otherwise stated)

As at As at

Patientars 31 March 20256 31 March 2024

5 Other financial assets

9.

-

Non - current

Security deposits 43.58 40.48
Deposits with banks having maturity period of more than twelve months® 61.80 -
Total 105.38 40_4;
* held as lien amounting to ¥ 60.00 lakhs (excluding interest) (31 March 2024: Nil) against credil facilities.

Current

Deposils with banks# 106.38 -
Total 106.38 -

# held as lien amounting to ¥ 5.60 lakhs (excluding interest) (31 March 2024: Nil) against credit facilities.

Non-current tax assets (net)

Advance income tax (net) 281.37 120.86
281.37 120.86

i. The following table provides the details of income tax assets and liabilities:

Income tax assets 281.37 120.86
Net income tax assets 281,37 120.86

. The gross movement in the current income tax assets (net):

Net current income tax assets / (liability) at the beginning 120.86 (28.12)
Pravision made during the year (0.34) (1.85)
Tax adjustment far earlier years 1.85 -
Refund received - (18.12) (1.03)
Income tax paid 177.12 151.86
Net current income tax assets at the end 281.37 120.86

jiii. A reconciliation of the income tax provision to the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax rate to the profit / (loss) before income taxes is
as below:
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Current tax (1.51) 1.85
Deferred tax (93.08) (327.65)
Total tax expense (94.59) (325.80)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Loss before income tax (299.51) (698.80)
Basic Income Tax rate (Ws 115BAA of Income Tax Act, 1861) 22.00% 22,00%
Surcharga 10.00% 10.00%
Health and education cess 4.00% 4.00%
Effective income tax rate 2517% 2547%
Computed expected tax expense/ (credit) (75.38) (175.87)
Effect of expenses allowed for tax purpose (16.34) (53.05)
Effect of expenses not allowed for tax purpose 0.16 5.44
Losses on which deferred tax was not created previously now created - (100.11)
Reversal of excess tax provision 1.85 -
Items subject to tax at special rate (2.11) (2.22)
Others (2.77) 0.01
Income tax expense charged to the statement of profit and loss (94.59) (325.80)

Other non current assets
Unsecured, considered good

Capital advances 548,96 981.46
Total 548.96 981.46
Inventories

Consumables, stores and spares

Consumables, stores and spares 341.73 135.32
Total 341.73 135.32

Investments (current)

Investments in debenture and bonds measured at fair value through profit and loss (Refer note 9.1 below). - 33.99
- 33.99

Other disclosures for current investments:
- Aggregate amount of quoted investments - -
- Aggregate market value of quoted investments - -
- Agaregate amount of unquoted investments - 33.99
- Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investiments

NLE0 acco
——




Taron Material Handling Equipments Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount ¥ in lakhs, except for share data, and if otherwise stated)

10 Trade receivables

As at

As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Trade receivables 2.404.82 1,708.20

Less - Allowance for expected credit loss {92.60) (110.71)

Total 2,3 2=:§_; 1 I598.49
10,1 Break-up of security details

Trade receivables considered good - secured = “

Trade receivables considered good - unsecured 2.404.82 1.709.20

Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk - -

Trade receivables - credit impaired - unsecurad - -

Total 2,404.82 1,709.20

Less - Allowance for expected credil loss {92.60) (110.71)

Total 2,222 1,598.49
10.2 Ageing of trade receivables

Outstanding for the following periods from the due date of payment
AL 3 arch 202 Unbilled Not due Leastnans. 6 months 1-2years  2-1 years More than Totl
months to 1 year 3 years

Undisputed trade receivables 345.87 1,126.55 828.86 51.76 4513 6.65 - 2,404.82

- considered good

Undisputed trade receivables - - - o - - v &

- credil impaired

Disputed trade receivables - = - - - - - -

— considered good

Disputed trade receivables - = - = - - - ~

— cradit impaired

Gross balance 345.87 1,126.55 828.86 51.76 45.13 6.65 - 2,404.82

Expected loss rate 0.00% 0.00%  -78.86%  -100.00%  -100.00% 0.00% -3.85%

Less : Allowance for expected credit loss = = (40.82) (45.13) _(6.:65) = (92.60)

Net bal. 345.87 1,126.55 828.86 10.94 - - = 2,312.22

[+] ling for the following periods from the due date of payment
As at 31 March 2024 Unbilled Rotdiie Lessthan8 Gmonths- yours: 28 years More than Total
months 1 year 3 years

Undisputed trade receivables 144.23 1,006.23 419.59 B85.27 1077 29.56 13.55 1,709.20

- considered good

Undisputed trade receivables - = - - = = - -

— credit impaired

Disputed trade receivables - - - - - - - -

— considered good

Disputed trade receivables E = = = - - = -

— credit impaired

Gross balance 144.23 1,006.23 419.59 85,27 10.77 29.56 13.55 1,709.20

Expected loss rate 0.00% 0.00% -66.65% -100.00% -100.00% -100.00% -5.48%

Less : Allowance for expected credit loss - - (56.83) (10.77) (29.56) {13.55) (110.71)

Net bal. 144.23 1,006.23 419.59 28.44 - - - 1,598.49
10.3 Movement in unbilled receivable

As at As at

Particulars 31 March 2025 |31 March 2024

Bal as at beginning of the year 144.23 147.64

Less: Billed during the year (144.23) {142.62)

Add Revenue recognised during the year 345,87 139.21

Bal as at end of the year 345.87 144.23

haN(a)
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Taron Material Handling Equipments Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Amount ¥ in lakhs, except for share data, and if otherwise stated)

11 Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks

- Current accounts

- Depasits with ariginal maturity of less than three months®
Total

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Nate: There are no repalriation restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the reporting period and prior periods.

A held as lien amounting to ¥ 1,.230.00 lakhs (excluding interest) (31 March 2024: Nil) against credit facilities.

12 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents above
Deposits with ariginal malurity of more than three maonths but less than twelve months®
Total '

* held as lien amounting to # 72.07 lakhs (excluding interest) (31 March 2024: ® 1.17 lakhs) against credit facilities.

13 Other current assets
Advances to suppliers
Advances to employees
Prepaid expenses
Balance with gavernment authorities
Total

14 Assets held for sale
Building*
Total

*The disposable assets were stated at lower of fair value less cosl lo sale or carrying value.

Movement of assets held for sale
Opening balance

Add: Additions

Less: Disposal

Less: Impairment loss

Closing balance

Z ORANDIC

'..’\/v -;'r
i
{
M
A
‘:_2:?;‘5\__ O
\__‘_AGG

87.86 327.83
1,235.95 -
1 ;323.81 327.83
74.71 25.63
74.71 25.63
69.16 17,73
14.38 24.88
17.82 34.75
181.07 614,30
282.43 691.66
246.32 =
246.32 -
246,32 -
2632 -




Taron

ial Handling Equif Private Limited

Motes to the financlal statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025

in ¥ in lakhs, except for share data, and if otherwise d)

15

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

{f

16

M

(i)

Share capital

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Number A t Numt Amount
Authorised share capital #
Equity Shares of 2 10 each [Refer nate below] 850,000 85.00 850,000 85.00
14.3% Non Cumulative Compulsonly Redeemable Preference Shares of ¥ 10 each 200,000 20.00 200,000 20.00
Total 1,050,000 105.00 1,060,000 106.00

# During the previous year, the autherised equity share capital of the Campany had been increased by the authorised equity share capital of the former Skan Marine
Services Private Limited (SMSPL) i.e. 5,000 shares of # 10 each amounting to # 0.50 lakhs, in accordance with the Scheme of Merger vide Board resolution daled 25 July
2023.

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up

Equity shares of ¥ 10 each fully paid up 733,270 73.33 733.270 73.33
Total issued, subscribed and fully paid capital 733,270 73.33 733,270 73.33
(i) Reconciliation of shares ding at the beginning and at the end of the year
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Number Amount Numb A t
Equity shares of ¥ 10 each fully paid
Balance as at the baginning of the year 733,270 73.33 733.270 73.33
Balance at the end of the year 733,270 73.33 733,270 73.33
Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares :
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Particulars ”:hm:_::o' % holding ET’E::'J % halding
Equity shares of ¥ 10 each
LEAP India Private Limited and its nominees (the Holding Cempany) 733,270 100.00% 733,270 100.00%
733,270 100.00% 733,270 100.00%

Rights, preference and restrictions attached to equity shares issued

Equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of ¥ 10 per share. Each holder of equity share is entilled lo one vote per share and in the event of
liquidation, has rights proportionate to their shareholding over the residual assets after paying out all the liabilities.

The Company has neither issued bonus shares or shares without payment in cash nor has there been any buy back of shares from the date of incorporation 1ill 31 March
2025.

Pursuant to the merger between SMSPL and the Company, and upon receipt of the cerified copy of the order, which was filed with the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, on
21 June 2024, the NCCRPS issued have been cancelled in accordance wilh the Scheme of Merger.

Other equity
Particul Sy eh
articulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Reserve and surplus

- Securnities premium 673.27 673.27
- Retained earnings (696.35) (456.42)
Total (23.08) 216.85

Note - For movement in other equity refer Statement of Changes in Equity.
Nature and purpose of other equity and reserves :

Securities premium
Securilies premium account is created when shares are issued at premium, The Company may utilise the securities pramium account to issue fully paid-up bonus shares to
its members, for buy back of shares from its existing shareholders or otherwise, or lo wrile off share issue expenses,

Retained earnings
Retained earnings represents the cumulative profit/ loss of the Company and effects of remeasurements of defined benefits abligations routed through other comprehensive
income,

ZCT
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Taron Material Handling Equipments Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Amount in ¥ in lakhs, except for share data, and if otherwise d)

As at As at

Particul
BIELRLS 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

17 Borrowings (non-current)

A) Term loan from banks
Secured loans

i} This is an equipment finance term loan availed in tranches for financing the equipment purchase by the 2,398.28 690.68
Company. This loan carries an interest rate of 8.50% - 9.85% p.a. and is repayable in 59 monthly
structured instalments, on the basis of disbursement of the tranche cormmencing from August 2022 and
ending in June 2029,

The loan is secured against the equipment purchased (forklift) and is also guaranteed by the Holding
Company by means of a corporate guarantee.

ii} This is an equipment finance term loan availed in tranches for financing the equipment purchase by the 393.46 158.94
Company. This loan carries an inlerest rate of 9.25%- 9.75% p.a. which is repayable in 58 monthly
structured instalments, on the basis of disbursement of the tranche with two manths moratorium period
commencing from August 2022 and ending in September 2029,

The loan is secured against the equipment purchased (forklift).

iiij This is an equipment finance term loan availed for financing the equipment purchase by the Company. 817.89 989.23
This loan carries an interest rate of 9.00% p.a. which is repayable in 59 monthly instalments with one
manths moratorium period commencing from March 2024 and ending in January 2029.

The loan is secured against the equipment purchased (forklift).

iv) This is an equipment finance term loan availed in tranches for financing the equipment purchase by the 892.96 415.63
Company. This loan carries an interest rale of 9.00% p.a. which is repayable in 48 monthly instalments,
on the basis of disbursement of the tranche with one months moratorium period commencing from
September 2023 and ending in August 2029,

The loan is secured against the equipment purchased (forklift).

v) The loan carries an interest rate of 10.95% p.a. and is repayable in 24 quarterly structured instalments - 3.300.00
commencing from February 2023 and ending in February 2029. This loan gol repaid in the current year,
10.80% p.a. payable monthly to be linked to Axis Bank MCLR Rate of Interest = [Prevailing Axis Bank 1
‘Year MCLR at the time of disbursement + Spread (2.05%)] MCLR 1 Year as on 17 December 2022-
B.75%.

The loan is secured by:

1) First ranking pari-passu charge on mortgage of immovable property;

2) First exclusive charge on morigage of immovable property,;

3) First exclusive charge hypothecation on all the present and future movable fixed assels of the
borrower:;

4) First ranking pari-passu hypothecation on all current assels both present and future including but not
limited to book debts, receivables, insurance proceeds and cash flow generated from the borrower's
undertakings, commissions, reimbursements, and revenue of whatsoever nature both present and fulure;
5) Personal guarantees of Mr. Sunu Mathew. However, the same has been withdrawn during the
previous year.

vi) This is a term loan facility under construction equipment finance scheme which carries an interes! rate of - 26.70
7.85% p.a. and is repayable in 48 monthly structured instalments commencing from April 2021 and
ending in March 2025.

The loan is secured by:

1) The whole of the current assets of the borrower's stock of raw malerial, semi finished and finished
goods, stores and spares including relating to plant and machinery {consumables slores and spares),
bills receivable and book debts and all other receivables and moveable, both present and fulure:

2) The whole of the movable fixed assets of the borrower's including plant and machinery of the
borrower ;

3) All the book debts and receivables (bolh present and future) of the borrower including outstanding
monies receivable, claims and bills which are now due.

vii) This loan carries an interest rate of 8.25% p.a. It is repayable in 48 monthly structured instalments * 12.87
commencing fram October 2020 and ending in Seplember 2024,

The loan is secured against the equipment purchased.

viii) The loan carries an interest rate of 7.41% p.a. and is repayable in 37 monthly siructured instalments - 8.03

commencing from June 2021 and ending in June 2024. The loan is secured againsl the equipment
purchased,

ix) The loan carries an inlerest rate of 7.15% - 9.25% p.a. and is repayable in 35 lo 48 monthly struclured 1,159.99 1,696.49
instalments. The loan is secured against the equipment purchased.

%) The loan carries an interest rate of 9.25% p.a. and is repayable in 48 monthly structured instalments 271.84 371.95
commencing from August 2023 and ending in July 2027.The loan is secured against the equipment
purchased.

i) The loan carries an interest rate of 9.25% p.a. and is repayable in 58 monthly structured instalments with 1,160.92 -

twa months moratorium period commencing from June 2024 and ending March 2029. The loan is
secured against the equipmenl purchased.

Less: Current maturities of long term borrowings (Refer note 20) (1,994.26) (1.680.73)

§,101.08 5‘959.?9




Taron Material Handling Equipments Private Limited
Motes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025

(A tin & in lakhs, except for share data, and if otherwise stated)
As at As at
Parti
aptietijars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
B) Loan from related party (Refer note 40)
Unsecured loan
Loan laken from the Holding Company is repayable on demand bearing an interest rate of 9% per 13,442.47 8,172.53
annum for the purpose of use in siralegic operations. The Holding Company has provided a comfort to
the Company that it shall not demand back the loan including interest within next 1 year as a result of
which the said loan has been classified as non-current.
13,442.47 8,172,563
Total 18!543.55 14,162.32
17.1 Net debt reconciliation
Particulars
Cash and cash equivalents, bank balances and deposils including interest accrued thereon (1,566.70) (353.46)
Man-current borrowings (including current maturities) 20,537.81 15,843.05
Current borrowings - 552.39
Lease liabilities 263.57 J26.66
Net debt 19,234.68 16,368.64
Liabilities from fil ing activities
Non-current Cash and cash
borrowings equivalents, bank
Particulars Lease (including current . balances and
liabilities maturities, current Cursntbomawings deposits including Total
barrowings and interest accrued
interest payable) thereon
Balance as at 1 April 2023 . 10,624.66 329.73 (397.89) 10,556.50
Cash flows (net) - - - 44.43 44.43
New leases 353.43 - - - 353.43
Proceeds from long term borrowings - 6,884.23 - - 6,884.23
Proceeds from short term borrowings - - 222.66 - 222.66
Principal repayment of lease liabililies (26.77) - - - (26.77)
Repayment of long term borrowings - (2,196.97) - - (2,196.97)
Interesl expense 16,93 1,189.98 17.89 - 1,224.80
Interest paid (16.93) (658.85) (17.88) - (693.67)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 326.66 15,843.06 552.39 (353.486) 16,368.64
Cash flows (net) - - - (1.213.24) (1,213.24)
Proceeds from long lerm borrowings - 11,870.80 - - 11,870.80
Principal repayment of lease liabililies (63.09) - - - {63.09)
Repayment of long term borrowings - (7.920.77) - - (7.920.77)
Repayment of short term borrowings - - (652.39) - (552.39)
Interest expense 19.37 1,712.23 37.52 - 1,769.12
Interest paid (19.37) (967.50) (37.52) - (1,024.39)
Balance as at 31 March 2025 263.57 20,537.81 - (1,566.70) 19,234.68
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
18 Provisions (non-current)
Provision for employee benefits (Refer note 36)
- Gratuity 107.42 45.84
Total 107.42 45.84
19 Deferred tax liabilities
Movement in deferred tax assets/ (liabilities)
Particulars As at (Charged) / credited (Charged) / As at
31 March 2024 in profit and loss  credited to other 31 March 2025
comprehensive
income
Unabsorbed depreciation and brought forward losses 564.11 408.39 - 972.50
Provision for employee benefils 46.41 46.40 "I 104.58
Provision for expected credit loss 27.86 (4.55) - 23.31
Timing difference on tangible and intangible assets, {636.24) (366.65) - (1,002.89)
depreciation and amortisati
Temporary differences between righl-of-use assets and 8.96 (6.59) - 2.37
lease liabilities
Financial liabilities accounted as amortised cost - (4.00) - (4.00)
Gain from other investments (1.00) 1.00 - -
Customer relationship (265.10) 19.08 - (246.02)
Total (255.00) 93.08 11.7I7 (150.15)
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Taron Material Handling Equipments Private Limited
Motes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025
fAmount in ¥ in lakhs, except for share data, and if otherwise stated)

Particulars As at (Charged) / credited (Charged) / As at

01 April 2023 in Profit and loss  credited to other 31 March 2024

comprehensive
income
Unabsorbed depreciation and brought forward losses 15.48 548.63 - 564,11
Provision for employee benefils 32,65 12.78 0.98 46.41
Provision for expected credit loss 11.57 16.29 - 27.86
Timing difference on tangible and intangible assets, {336.59) (299.65) - (636.24)
depreciation and amortisation
Temporary differences between right of use assets and - 8.96 8.96
lease liabilities
Gain from other investments (20.56) 19.56 - (1.00)
Cuslomer relationship (286.18) 21.08 - (265.10)
Total (583.63) 327.65 0.98 (255.00)
As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

20 Borrowings {current)
Secured loans
Current maturities of long term borrowings
- Term loans from banks (Refer note 17 A for security and repayment details) 1.994.26 1,680.73

Warking capital loans:

- Cash credit (Refer note 20.1 for security delails) - 552.39
Total 1,894.26 2,233.12

Nature of securities

20,1 Secured
i) Cash credit obtained from ICICI bank which is repayable on demand balance outstanding of which is Nil (31 March 2024: ¥ 552.39 lakhs ) is
secured by:
a. Pledged of open ended dett mutual funds held by the Holding Company amounting to Nil (31 March 2024 : % 5,180.02 lakhs)
The facility carries an interest rate of 9 % p.a. to be linked to I-MCLR 6M and spread.

ii) Cash credit obtained from Axis bank which is repayable on demand balance outstanding of which is Nil (31 March 2024: Nil), but facility is
existing, is secured by:
a. First pari passu securily interest on the enlire current assets of the borrower present and fulure.
b. Second pari-pass charge by way of morigage/ hypothecalion on entire fixed assets including maovable (Excluding those specifically charged
to equipment finance) lenders of the borrowers both present and fulure.
¢, Second pari passu security interest on the brand name, intangibles, goodwill, intellectual property uncalled capital (present and future
belonging to the borrower.
The facility carries an interest rate of 9.25% p.a. which is payable at monthly intervals.

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
21 Trade payables

Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises (Refer note 21.1) 20,37 17.57
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 716.42 862.77
736.79 880.34

Ageing of trade payables

As at 31 March 2025

Outstanding for the following periods from the date of transaction

i Total

Particiiam Unbilled L“:;::" 1 1-2 years 2.3 years More than 3 years ota
Undisputed:
Dues to micro and small
enlerprises 0.29 20.08 - - - 20,37
Dues of creditors other
than micro and small 173.19 127.93 407.07 2.28 5.95 716.42
enterprises
Disputed:

Dues to micro and small

enlerprises

Dues of creditors other

than micro and small B & = % <
enterprises

Total 173.48 148.01 407.07 2,28 5.95 736.79




Taron Material Handling Equipments Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in ¥ in lakhs, pt for share data, and if otherwise )

As at 31 March 2024

Outstanding for the following periods from the date of transaction
Less than 1
year

Particulars Total

Unbilled 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years

Undisputed:

Dues to micro and small
enterprises

Dues of creditors other
than micro and small
enlerprises

3.80 8.88 1.41 0.02 3.66 17.57

22475 587.42 42,49 552 2.59 862,77

Disputed:
Dues to micro and small
enterprises

Dues of credilors other
than micra and small = 4 5 =} = =
enlerprises

Total

228.35 596.30 43.90 5.54 6.25 880.34

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2025

21.1 Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006
a) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid lo any supplier as at the end of
each accounling year,
b} Interest accrued and due to suppliers under MSMED. 0.29 3.60
c) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the
amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year, = 5

20,08 13.97

d

The amount of inlerest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been - -
paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the inlerest specified under Micro

and Small Enterprise Development Act, 2006.

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid al the end of each accounting year; 0.29 3.60
The amount of further interest 1 due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date - -
when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance

as a deductible expenditure under seclion 23 of the Micro and Small Enlerprise Development Act, 2008,

=

Note:- The above information regarding Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has been delermined on
the basis of informalion available with the Company.

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

22 Other current financial liabilities

Payable for capital goods 181.40 584,79
Payables to related parties 49.39 -
Security deposits* 1.29 10.21
Employee related payables 477.26 293.73
709.34 888.73
* Security deposils collected from customers are to be adjusled against the oulstanding receivables al the end of conlract period.
23 Other current liabilities
Advance towards asset held for sale 52.20 -
Conlract liabilities
Advance from customers (Refer note 23.1) 175,00 273
Statutory dues payable 247.77 81.65
474.97 84.38
23,1 Movement in advance from customers
As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Bal at the beginning of the year 2.73 35.00
Add: Advance received from cust 175.00 2.73
Less: Invoice raised during the year {2.73) (35.00
Balance as at end of the year 175.00 2,73
As at As at

24 Provisions (current)
Provisions for employee benefits (Refer nole 36)

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

- Graluity 63,96 68.78
- Compensated absences 14.14 3.66
78.10 72.44




Taron Material Handling Equipments Private Limited
Motes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025

(.1

tin ¥ lakhs, except for share data, and if otherwise

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2025

Year ended
31 March 2024

25 Revenue from operations

(a) Sale of services (Refer note 40)
(b) Sale of producls
(c) Other operaling revenue

(i) Information of disaggregated revenue as per Ind AS 115

(A) Based on nature of product or service:
(a) Sale of services
Rental income and other incidental services from forklifts and material handing

(b) Sale of products:
Sale of traded goods
- Forklifts

(c) Other operating revenue
Sale of scrap (property, plant and equipment)
Excess provision wrilten back

Total revenue from operations

(B) Based on timing of revenue recognition:

Services transferred at a point of time
Products transferred at a point of time

8,043.54 6,431.24
= 312.57
21.31 25.26
8,964.85 6,769.07
quipment 8,943.54 6.431.24
8,943.54 6,431.24
- 312,57
- 312.57
3,20 26.26
18.11 -
21.31 25.26
8,964.85 6,769.07
8,043.54 6.431.24
. 312,57

The amounts receivable from customers become due after expiry of credit period which on an average ranges between 7-45 days. There is no significant
financing component in any transaction with the customers. The Company does not have any remaining performance obligation as conlracts entered for sale
of goods and services are for a shorter duration. The Company's business operations fall within a single operaling segment of pooling (for hire), Irading of
pallets and crates and services related thereto. Accordingly the Company operation is single element in terms of its products.

There are no reconciling items in revenue from operations with conlracl price as required by Ind AS 115.

(i) The following table gives details in respect of contract revenues generated from the top cuslomer and top 5 custemers for the year ended 31 March 2025 and

26

27

28

29.

=

31 March 2024 :

Revenue from top customer
Revenue from top five customers

For the year ended 31 March 2025, one (1) [31 March 2024: one (1)] customer individually accounted for more than 10% of the lotal revenue.

Other income

Interest income

- on bank deposits

- on financial assets measured al amortised cost

- on income tax refund

Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment (net)
Net gain due to change in fair value of current investments
Gain on sale of investment

Fareign exchange gain (net)

Insurance claim

Miscellaneous*

* amount is less than 2 500,

Purchase of stock-in-trade
Forklift

Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade

At beginning of the year
Stock-in-Trade (Refer note 8)

At end of the year
Stock-in-Trade (Refer note 8)

Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Share based payment expense (net) (Refer note 29.1)
Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer nole 36)
Slalf wellare expenses

1,035.82 1,153.02

3,210.85 3,059.49

11.46 1,00

2.30 1.06

0.78 013

10.47 19.42

E 3.78

2.41 16.97

= 6.48
49.06 -

0.00 3.19

76.48 5212

- 266.47

- 266.47

= 38.89

- 38.89

449523 3,081.97
22.23 -

379.57 247.62

2417 24.97

4,921.20 3,354.56

Share based payment to employees represents lhe Employee Stock Options granted by the Holding Company to the employees of the Company.
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Taron Material Handling Equipments Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025
{Amount in ¥ lakhs, except for share data, and if atherwise stated)

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2025

Year ended
31 March 2024

30 Finance costs
Interest expense
- term loans 958.87 628.59
- cash credit 37.52 17.89
- loan from related party (Refer note 40) 753.36 561.29
- lzase liabilities (Refer nole 43) 19.37 16.93
- others 0.64 3.60
Bank charges 6.34 -
Other borrowing cost 27.15 =
1,803.25 1|228.30
31 Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (Refer note 3) 1.205.27 617.77
Depreciation on right-of-use assels (Refer nole 43) 80.40 39.83
Amortisation on intangible assels (Refer nole 4 (a)) 84.53 76.55
1,370.20 73415
32 Other expenses
Repairs and maintenance 533.50 395.04
Rent (Refer notes 40 and 43) 224,49 96.85
Rales and taxes 15.42 20.85
Insurance 40.20 22,78
Exchange difference (net) 0.37 -
Information technology 17.15 3.56
Legal and professional fees 85.62 47.82
Printing and slationery 348 -
Audilors' remuneration (Refer note below) 22.00 25.00
Office and site 9.43 17.91
Conveyance and travelling 92.04 60.50
Markeling 25.82 0.08
Provision for expected loss - 65.08
Business support expenses (Refer note 40) - 935.28
Corporate social responsibility (Refer note 46) - 21209
Packing, freight and transport (net of recoveries) 134.19 129.79
Power and fuel 6.46 50
Forklift inspection - 3.36
Miscellaneous 36.01 47.44
1,246.19 1,897.62
Note:
i} Details of auditors’ remuneration (excluding GST):
Audit fees 22,00 17.00
Others (including certification fees) - 8.00
22,00 25.00
33 Tax expense [ (credit)
Current lax 0.24 1.85
Tax adjustments for earlier years (1.85) -
Deferred lax (93.08) (327.65)
Total tax credit (94.59) (325.80)
34 Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to the of Profit and Loss
Re-measurement loss on defined benefit plan (Refer note 36) (46.78) (3.88)
Income tax relaling o above 11.77 0.98
{35£1 ] |2.9CI!
35 Earnings per share (EPS)
Loss computation for both basic and diluted earnings per share
Net loss altributable to equity share holders for basic and diluted earnings per share (204.92) (373.00)
Number of shares for basic and diluted earning per share 733,270 733,270
Basic and diluted (in ) (27.95) (50.87)
Nominal value per share (in ¥) 10.00 10.00




Taron Material Handling Equipments Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in ¥ lakhs, except for share data, and if otherwise stated)

36 As per Indian Accounting Standard-19, ‘Employee Benefits’, the disclosure of Employee henefits as defined in the Standard are given below:

I

A)

B)

Defined benefit plan (unfunded)

The Company provides for gratuity benefit under a defined benefit retirement scheme (the “Gratuity Scheme’) as laid out by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972
of India covering eligible employees i.e. an employee who has completed five years of service is enliled to specific benefits. The level of benefits provided

depends on the member's length of service and salary at retirement age.

Liabilities with regard lo the Gratuity Scheme are determined by actuarial valuation carried out using the Projected Unit Credit Method by an independent

actuary.

The scheme is neither funded with an insurance company in the form of qualifying insurance policy, nor have created any assets.

Balance Sheet

Particulars

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Changes in the present value of obligation

Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year
Adjustment on acquisition of Skan Marine Services Private Limited (Refer note 49)
Current service cost

Interest expenses

Past service cost

Benefits paid

Re-measurement (or actuarial) (gain) / loss arising from:

- change in demographic assumptions

- change in financial assumptions

- experience variance (i.e. actual experience vs assumptions)

Present value of obligation at the end of the year

114.62 76.78
31.75 28.41
8.19 5.55
(29.98) G
12.29 (5.90)
13.21 0.81
21.28 8.97
171.38 114.62

Bifurcation of present value of obligation at the end of the year as per revised Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013

Particulars

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Amount recognised in Balance Sheet

Present value of the obligation at the end of the year 171.38 114.62
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year - -
Net liability recognised at the end of the year 171.38 114.62
Classification of provisions

Current liability 63.96 68.78
Non current liability 107.42 45.84
Amounts recognized in the Balance Sheet 171.38 114.62
Statement of Profit and Loss

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Current service cost 31.75 28.41
Net interest cost B.19 5.55
Total expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 39.94 33.96
Loss recognised in the other comprehensive income
Re-measurement (or actuarial) (gain) / loss arising from: - -
- change in demographic assumptions 12,29 (5.90)
- change in financial assumptions 13.21 0.81
- experience variance (i.e. actual experiences assumptions) 21.28 8.97
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income 46.78 3.88
The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity for the Company's plans are shown below:
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Discount rate 6.45% 7.15%
Salary growth rate 10.00% 5.5% - 10%
Age of retirement 58 years 58 - 60 years
Aftrition { withdrawal rates (per annum):

White Collar 5% 5% - 68%

Blue Collar 47% 47% - 68%

Mortality (table)

100% Indian Assured
Lives Mortality (2012-14)

Ultimate

100% Indian Assured
Lives Mortality (2012-14)

Ultimate

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian government securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimaled term of the obligations.

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation. seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as

supply and demand in the employment market.
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Taron Material Handling Equipments Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025
{Amount in ¥ lakhs, except for share data, and if otherwise sfafed)

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation
Weighted average duration (based on discounted cashflows) 3 Years 1-12years
Expected cash flows over the next (valued on undiscounted basis):
1 year 63.96 68.78
21o 5 years 105.96 53.52
61to 10 years 24.21 477
More than 10 years 30.92 11.38

Sensitivity Analysis:

Description of Risk Exposures

Valuations are performed on certain basic set of pre-determined assumptions which may vary over time. Thus, the Company is exposed to various risks in
providing the above benefit which are as follows:

Interest rate risk: The plan exposes the Company to the risk of fall in interest rates. A fall in interest rates will result in an increase in the ultimate cost of
providing the above benefit and will thus result in an increase in the value of liability.

Liquidity risk: This is the risk that the Company is not able to meet the short term benefit payouts. This may arise due to non availability of enough cash/cash
equivalent to meet the liabilities or holding of illiquid assets not being sold in time.

Salary escalation risk: The present value of the above benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan participants in future.
Deviation in the rate of increase in salary in future for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value of obligation will
have a bearing on the plan's liability.

Demographic risk: The Company has used certain mortality and attrition assumptions in valuation of the liability. The Company is exposed to the risk of actual
experience turning out to be worse compared to the assumption,

Regulatory risk: Gratuity benefit is paid in accordance with the requirements of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 (as amended from time to time). There is a
risk of change in regulations requiring higher gratuity payouts (for example, increase in the maximum liability on gratuity of ¥ 20 lakhs.

Asset-Liability Matching: The Company has purchased insurance policy, which is basically a year-on-year cash accumulation plan in which the interest rate is
declared on yearly basis and is guaranteed for a period of one year. The insurance company, as part of the policy rules, makes payment of all gratuity outgoes
happening during the year (subject to sufficiency of funds under the policy). The policy, thus, mitigates the liquidity risk. However, being a cash accumulation
plan, the duration of assels is shorter compared to the duration of liabilities. Thus, the Company is exposed to movement in interest rate (in particular, the
significant fall in interest rates, which should result in a increase in liability without corresponding increase in the asset).

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Decrease Increase Decrease Increase
Delta effect of { -/+ 1%) change in discount rate 177.32 165.99 117.11 112.31
{% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 3.50% -3.20% 2.20% -2.00%
Della effect of ( -/+ 1%) change in salary growth rate 166.11 177.07 112.28 117.09
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) -3.10% 3.3% -2.00% 2.1%
Delta effect of { -/+ 50% of attrition rate) change in attrition rate 224.25 147.12 138.62 100.81
{% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 30.80% -14.20% 20.90% -12.00%
Delta effect of { -/+ 10% of mortality rate) change in mortality rate* 171.38 171.39 114,61 114.64
(% change compared to base due lo sensilivity) 0.0% 0.00% 0.0% 0.00%

*The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in
assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated. There was na change in the methods and assumptions
used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior year.

(C) Compensated absences
The obligations for compensated absences as at year end amounts to ¥ 14,14 lakhs (31 March: 2024: 3.66 lakhs).

(D) Defined contribution plan
Amount recognised as an expense and included in the note as "Contribution to provident and other funds” under note 29 is  379.57 lakhs (31 March 2024: #
247 .62 lakhs).
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Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in ¥ lakhs, except for share data, and if otherwise stated)

37 Fair value measurements

(I} Fair value hierarchy
The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount that would be received to sell an assel or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaclion
between market participant at the measurement date.
This section explains the judgments and estimales made in delermining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b)
measured al amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining
fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows undemeath
the table.
Level 1 ; Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments, traded bonds and mutual funds thal have
quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments (including bonds) which are traded in the stock exchanges are valued using the closing price as at the reporting period.
Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments thal are not traded in an active markel (for example, traded bonds, over-the counter derivalives) is determined using valuation
lechniques which maximise the use of observable market dala and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.
Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

(ii) Valuation technique used to determine fair value
Specific valualion lechniques used lo value financial instruments include:
- Ihe use of quoled market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments
- the use of discounted cash flow for fair value at amortised cost

(ili) Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed

Carrying value Fair value
Financial Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets and liabilities as at assets liabilities| ___ FInanctal
31 March 2025 Amortised at fair value assets/ liabilities | Total carrying
cost/ Cost through profit or at fair value value
through OCI
loss
Financial assets - non-current
Other financial assets 105.38 - - 105.38 - - - -
Financial ets - current
Investments - - - - - - - -
Trade receivables 2,312.22 - - 231222 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 1.323.81 - - 1,323.81 - - b ”
Bank balances other than cash and cash 7471 - - 7471 - - = 2
equivalents
Other financial assets 106.38 - - 106.38 - - - -
Einancial liabilities - non-current
Borrowings (including current maturities) 20,537.81 - - 20,537.81 - - - -
Lease liabilities 198.72 - - 198.72 - - - -
Eil ial liabilities - current
Borrowings - - - - - - - -
Lease liabilities 64.85 - - 64.85 - - - -
Trade payables 736.79 - - 736.79 - - - -
Other financial liabilities 709.34 - - 708.34 - - - -
Carrying value Fair value
) Financial Financial Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets and liabilities as at assets/ liabilities :
31 March 2024 Amortised atfale value assets/ liabilities| Total carrying
cost/ Cost through profit or at fair value value
lais through OCI
Einancial assets - non-current
Other financial assets 40.48 - - 40.48 - - - -
Einancial assets - current
Investments - 33.99 - 33.99 - 33.99 - 33.99
Trade receivables 1,598.49 - - 1,598.49 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 327.83 - - 327.83 - - - -
Bank balances other than cash and cash 25.63 - - 25,63 - - - -
equivalents
Other financial assets - - - - - - - -
Einancial liabilities - non-current
Borrowings (including current maturities) 15,843.05 - - 15,843,056 - - - -
Lease liabilities 268,67 - - 268.67 - - - -
Einancial liabilities - current
Borrowings 552.39 - - 552.39 - - - -
Lease liabilities 57.99 - - 57.99 - - - -
Trade payables 880.34 - - 880.34 - - - -
Other fi ial liabilities 888.73 - - 888.73 - - - -

During the periods mentioned above, there have been no transfers amongst the levels of hierarchy.
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(ii)

(iii)

Financial risk management

The Company activities expose it to interest rate risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. In order to minimise any adverse effects on the financial performance, the
Company's risk management is carried out by a corporate treasury and corporale finance department under policies approved by the hoard of directors and
top management. The Company's treasury identifies, evaluates and mitigates financial risks in close cooperation with the Company's operating units. The
board provides guidance for overall the risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas.

This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk and the related impact in the financial statements.

Credit risk
GCredit risk is the risk of financial loss arising from counterparty failure to repay or service debt according to the contractual terms and obligations. Credit risk
encompasses of both, the direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration of risks. Credit risk is controlled by
analysing credit limits and credit worthiness of the customer on continuous basis to whom the credit has been granted after obtaining necessary approvals
for credit. The financial instruments that are subject to concentration of credit risk principally consist of trade receivables, loans and cash and bank
equivalents.

To manage credit risk, the Company follows a policy of providing 7 to 45 days credit to its customers. The credit limit policy is established considering the
current economic trend of the industry in which the Company is operating. Also, the trade receivables are monitored on a periodic basis for assessing any
significant risk of non-recoverability of dues and provision is created accordingly. Refer note 10.2 for ageing analysis.

Description of category Basis for recognition of expected credit loss provision

Assets where the counterparty has strong|Lifetime expected credit loss (simplified approach).
capacity to meet the obligations and where the
risk of default is negligible or nil.

Assets where the is low risk of default and
where the counterparty has sufficient capacity
to meet the obligations and where there has
been low frequency of defaults in the past.

Assets where is there is high risk of default{100% provision is considered for doubtful assets, credit impaired.
and there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery, the Company continues in
enforcement activity to attempt to recover the
receivable due. Where recoveries are made,
these are recognised in profit or loss.

Loans and other financial assets includes loans granted to related parties, deposits receivable, interest accrued on deposits and other receivables. These
receivables are manitored on a periadic basis for assessing any significant risk of non-recoverability of dues and provision is created accordingly.

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Company generally invest in deposits with banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings
assigned by international and domestic credit rating agencies.

The movement of the allowance for lifetime expected credit loss is as below:

As at As at
Prdicular 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year 110,71 45.63
Changes in loss allowances
(Deletion) / Additions (18.11) 65.08
Balance at the end of the year 92.60 110.71
Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without incurring unacceptable
losses. The Company's objective is to maintain optimum levels of liquidity and to ensure that funds are available for use as per requirement.

The liquidity risk principally arises from obligations on account of financial liabilities viz. borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities.

The finance department of the Company is responsible for liquidity and funding as well as setilement management. In addition, processes and policies
related to such risks are overseen by senior management. Management monitors the Company’s net liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis
of expected cash flows.
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(Amount in ¥ lakhs, except for share data, and if otherwise stated)

(i) Maturities of financial liabilities

The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date based on the contractual

undiscounted payments.

As at 31 March 2025 Carrying amount Contractual maturities
Particulars Amount SARAySe o Upto 1 year Between 1and 3| Beyond § Total
demand years years
Baorrowings (including current maturities) 20,537.81 - 1,894.26 18,567.28 - 20,561.54
Lease liabilities 263.57 = 86.58 213.88 = 300.48
Trade payables 736.79 - 736.79 - - 736.79
Other financial liabilities 709.34 - 709.34 - - 709.34
Total 22,247.50 - 3,526.97 18,781.16 - 22,308.13
As at 31 March 2024 Carrying amount Contractual maturities
Particulars Amount Repuyable on Upto 1 year Retwesntand 3 Beyont8 Total
demand years years
Borrowings (including current maturities) 16,395.44 552.39 1.680.73 14,165.64 - 16,398.76
Lease liabilities 326.66 - B2.46 300.46 - 382.92
Trade payables 880.34 - 880.24 - - B880.34
Other financial liabilities 888.73 - 888.73 - - 888.73
Total 18,491.17 552.39 3,532.26 14,466.10 - 18,550.75

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

- Interest rate risk management

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rate risks.
The Company's exposure to risk of changes in market interest rates primarily to the Company's long-term debt obligations.

- Interest rate exposure

The exposure of the Company's borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Particulars As ot asat
31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Variable rate borrowings - 3,852.39
Fixed rate borrowings 20,537.81 12,543.05
Total 20,537.81 16,395.44

Interest rate sensitivity
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of borrowings affected. With all other
variables held constant, the Company's profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Impact on equity Impact on profit or loss before tax
31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Particulars

50 bps increase® - (14.41) - (19.28)
50 bps decrease” - 14.41 - 19.26

* Sensitivity is calculated based on the assumption that amount outstanding as at reporting dates were utilised during the year.

(ii) Foreign currency risk
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The Company does not have any outstanding balances in foreign currency and consequently the Company's exposure to foreign exchange risk is Nil.
Although, the exchange rate between the rupee and foreign currencies has changed substantially in recent years, it has not affected the resuits of the
Company. The Company evaluates exchange rate exposure arising from foreign currency transactions entered during the year and follows established risk
management policies. i

Capital Management

{a) Risk management

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to :

1, Safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
and

2. Maintain an optimal capital structure to minimize the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders,
issue new shares, reduce debt or sell assets.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial
covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders (if permitted). Consistent with others in the industry, the Company monitors its capital using the gearing ratio which is net debt divided by total
debt + capital (equity).

The gearing ratios were as follows:

i As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Net debt 19,234.68 16,368.64
Total equity 50.25 290.18
Capital Gearing Ratio 100.00% 98.00%
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40 Disclosure in accordance with Ind AS 24 Related Party Disclosures

a)

b)

c)

Names of related parties and description of relationship:

Description of relationship

MNames of related parties

(i) Holding Company

(i) Key Management Personnel (KMP)

LEAP India Private Limited

Mr. Sunu Mathew (Director)
Mrs. Bindu Mathew (Director)

Related party transactions :

LEAP India Private Limited

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Reimbursement of expense incurred by Holding Company
Renting of forklift / Other equipment

Loan received

Rent expenses

Interest on loan

Caorporate guarantee withdrawn by the Holding Company
Corporate guarantee issued by the Holding Company
Other borrowing cost

Share based payment expense (net)

Business support expense

Loan repaid

Balance outstanding as at the year end
Loan outstanding (including interest accrued)
LEAP India Private Limited

Trade payables
LEAP India Private Limited

Guarantees outstanding
LEAP India Private Limited

Advance from customers
LEAP India Private Limited

Other payables
LEAP India Private Limited

Notes:

Year ended
31 March 2025

Year ended
31 March 2024

89.92
7.420.00
23.48
753.36
1,600.00
2,715.39
27.15
22,23

2,903.41

As at
31 March 2025

21.15
6.60
20.96
3,250.00
0.16
561.29

935.28
1,267.56

As at
31 March 2024

13,442.47

404.07

2,715.38

49.39

8,172.53

505.58

1,600.00

0.15

a) Refer notes 17 and 20.1 for guarantee and security provided by related parties, in respect of borrowings by the Company.

b) The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions.
c) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties
Outstanding balances of related parties at the year-end are unsecured
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41 Struck off Companies

. MNature of transactions with struck off Balance outstanding Relationship with
Pame ot zlrick ol sty Company as at 31 March 2025 the struck-olf company
35 Cansullancy Private Limited __ Payabie for sale of goods / services 0.02 Not Refated
Laxmi Ag ial Receivable for sale of goods / services 0.14 Not Related
Consultants and Exporters
Limited
r Mature of transactions with struck ofl Balance outstanding Relationship with
Name:of struck off entily Campany as at 31 March 2024 the struck-off company
25 Cansullancy Privale Limited  Payable for sale of goods { services 0.0 Nol Refated
Sri Sai i Payable for sale of goods [ services 1.19 Not Related
V-Xpress Payable for sale of goods ( services 0.00# Mol Related
# amount less than 500
42 Key analytical ratios :
Measure Asal As at Reason for
Ni t i i r Y 3
Particulars umerator Denominator {In times/ 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 Variance variance in
percentage) excess of 25%
Current ratio Current assets Current liabilit Times 1.16 0.67 72.13%|] Refer Note 1
Debl-equity ratio Tatal debt from banks and financial Total equity Times 141.20 28.34 398.24%
R Refer Note 2
Debl service coverage ratio # Eamings for dabt services 5 Debl service Times 1.59 0.42 276.26%)| Refer Mote 2
Return on equity ralio Mel profil afler laxes Average shareholdars® equity Pearcentage -120.39% -78.01% 54.32%| Refer Note 1
I y tumnover ralio Cost of goods sold Average i 5 Timeas Not 2.06 |Not applicabl Refer Nate 3
Trade receivables Winover ratio |Revenue from operations Average trade receivables Times 4.58 4.94 =7.18%
Trade i Purchases and ather expenses Average trade payables Timas 1.47 3.10 -52.58%)] Refer Note 1
Met capital turnover ralio Revenue from operations Average Working capital Times -23.14 -10.66 117.07%| Refer Notes 1
and 4
MNet prafil ratio Met profil after tax |Revenue from operations Percentage -2.29% -5.51% -58.52%| Refer Notes 1
and 4
Return on capital employed * Earnings before interes! and laxes * Capital employed Percenlage 7.68% 3.35% 126.22%)| Refer Note 1
Relurn on ant MNat appicabl MNat s Mot Not Mot i Nat appli Not applicabl
# Met profit before interest (from banks, financial institut and lease labilit el { and other adjs like loss on sale of propery, plant and equipment etc.
of lang term b ings and lease liabilities + interest
* Eamings before interest and lax = Profit after tax + Tax exp +D i and isatl P + Finance costs (excluding interest on lease abilities)
* Capital employed = Tangible net worth + tolal debt
i@ Cost of goods sald = Purct + Changes in'i ies
Notes :

1 Movement in ratio on account of significant increase in operations

2 The change is on account of increase in borrowing and loss incurmred during the year
3 Ralio is not applicable since there is no opening & closing invenlary

4 Movement in ratio en account of significant increase in revenue during the year
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43 Disclosure required by Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 116 'Lease’
Practical expedient opted by Company:
Company as a lessee
i) Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the year:

Gross carrying value Warehouse

As at 1 April 2023 -
Additions* 366.41
Disposal -
Maodification -
As at 31 March 2024 366.41
Additions -
Disposal =
Modification -
As at 31 March 2025 366.41
Accumulated depreciation

As at 1 April 2023 -
Depreciation charge 39.83
Reversal on disposals -
As at 31 March 2024 39.83
Depreciation charge 80.40
Reversal on disposals -
As at 31 March 2025 120.23
Net Block

As at 31 March 2024 326.58
As at 31 March 2025 246.18

(*) The above addition is post netting of 13.14 lakhs pertaining to present value of security deposits given for warehouses taken on
lease.

i) Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the year:

Particulars Warehouse

As at 1 April 2023 -
Additions 353.43
Termination -
Accretion of interest 16.93
Modification =
Payment of lease obligation (43.70)
As at 31 March 2024 326.66
Current 57.95
Non-current 268.67
Particulars Warehouse

As at 31 March 2024 326.66
Additions

Termination

Accretion of interest 19.37
Modification

Payment of lease obligation (82.46)
As at 31 March 2025 263.57
Current 64.85
Non-current 198.72

i) The table below provides details regarding contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at closing date on an undiscounted

basis:

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Less than one year 86.58 82.46
One to five years 213.88 300.46

More than five years = =

iv) Refer note 32 for expenses relating to short-term leases and low value assets.

The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the
obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due.

The Company has applied short term lease exemption where the period is less than 12 manths
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Segment reporting

Operating segmenis are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The chief aperaling decision maker ragularly monitors and
reviews the operating results of the whole Company as one segment of “Pooling of resources”. Thus. as defined in Ind AS 108 ‘Operaling Segments”. tha Company’s entire business falls
under this ane operational segment and hence the necessary infarmalion has already been disclosed in the Balance Shee! and the Stalement of Prafit and Loss, Further, the entire business
of the Company is within India, hence there is no geographical segment.

Other statutory information

(i) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceading has been initiated or pending against the C y for holding any Benami property.

(i) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet o be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory pariod.

(iiiy The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency dunng the financial year.

(iv) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person{s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (| I 1 wath the under ding that the Ir diary
shall

a. direclly or indirectly lend or invest in ather parsons ar entities identified in any manner whatsoever by ar on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficianes), or
b. provide any guarantee, secunity or the like to or an behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(v) During the current year, the Company has not recaived any fund fram any person(s) or entity(les), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in
writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other parsons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries). or

b. provide any guarantee, secunty or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

(vi) The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the lax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1861 (such as. search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1861,

{vii) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authonty.

{viity The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013,

{ix) The Company had enlered into a scheme of arrangement which had an accounting impact on the previous financial year.

Corporate social resg ibility (CSR) expendit

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder, every company having a net worth of 500 crore or more, or tumover of | 000 crore or mare or a net profit of 5
crore ar more during the immediately preceding financial year shall ensure that the company spends, in every financial year. at least 2% of the average net profits earmed during the three
immediately preceding financial years, in pursuance of its Carporate Social Responsibility Policy.

The provisions pertaining lo corporate social responsibility as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company since it does not exceed any of the thresholds
mentioned above.

Particul Year ended Year ended
SENEASIEE: 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years - 857.18
Prescribed CSR expenditure (2% of the average net profit as computed above) - 17.14
Details of CSR expenditure during the financial period:
Total amount ta be spent for the financial year (including shortfall for the previous year of ¥ 10.82 lakhs) 10.82 32.11
Amount spent 12.00 21.28
Amount (excess spent)unspent (1.18) 10.82
Mature of CSR activities undertaken by the company:
Particul Year ended Year ended
Areiars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
a, Gross amount required to be spent during the period 10.82 321
b, Amount spent on ongoing projects during the year # (includes amount spent for previous year unspent contribution)
I. Cantribution towards rural develapment - 5.00
ii. Contribution towards education 8.00 11.29
ii. Contribution towards promoting healthcare 4.00 5.00
Total t spent) / unsp (1.18) 10.&_
c. During the current and previous year, there is no related party transaction in relation to CSR Expendilure as per relevant accounting standards.
Contingent liabilities and commitments
Contingent liabilities
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt:
GST demand - 10.92
Notes :
(i) Itis not practical to estimate the timing of cash outfiows, if any. in respect of above matter (b) panding {ution / completion of the appeliate p dings / othar p dings, as

(ii) The Company does not expect any reimbursement in respect of the above contingent iabilities.

The Honourable Supreme Court, has passed a decision on 28 February 2019 in relation to inclusion of certain allowances within the scope of “Basic wages" for the purpose of determining
contribution to provident fund under the Employees’ Pravident Funds & Miscellaneous Provisions Act. 1952, The Company. based on legal advice, is awaiting further clarifications in this matter
in order to reasonably assess the impact on its financial statements, if any. Accordingly, the applicabllity of the judgement to the Company, with respect lo the period and the nature of
allowances lo be covered. and resultant impact on the past provident fund liability. cannot be reasonably ascertained, al present.

Capital commitments

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Capital commitments (Net of capital advances) 1.085.60 703.51
Note :

(i) Capital commitments pertain lo the Company’s contractual commitment for purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets under development,

Reconciliations of stock statement submitted to banks with books of accounts where borrowings have been availed based on security of current assets.
Amount
Amount as per books of | reported in the Amount of Reason for material
Quassar eqded féanis:of Rank Rarticylars accounts quarterly return/ difference variances
statement

ICICI Bank Trade receivablas 1.667.29 1,599.38 67.91 | The differences are on
30 June 2024 account of -

ICICI Bank Inventory 188.49 188.49 =l i
30 September 2024 ICICI Bank Trade receivables 2.128.61 1,939.72 188.89 | hank were made befare

ICICI Bank Inventary 296.91 296.91 - |financial reporting

i Trad ivabl 2.408.74 2,247.52 161,22 |closure process,

31 December 2024 Axis Bank rade recelvables by )

Axis Bank Inventory 363.11 363.11 2 N ait eh

.._|Axis Bank Trade receivables e 2.312.22 1,808.49 503.73 |considered in trade

31 March 2025 = \-\';uw i

Forls Bank Inventory 5?_&\“ E NN 341.73 34173 - |receivables, while
IR ~lleicl ank Trade receivables // & 7~ N %2 \\1.589,49 1,477.03 112.46 |reporting to the bank.

J?E:"IQ‘FB&N Inventary = s .| 0|\ 135.32 140.89 (5.57)
T . N =
0
MUMBAL ).

bl
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Business combinations - merger of SKAN Marine Services Private Limited

i) The Board of Directors of the Company had approved arrangement for amalgamation ol erstwhile wholly owned subsidiary. SKAN Marine Services Private Limited {Transferor Company”} with

the Company (the “Transferee Company”) in its meetfing held on 25 July 2023. The Scheme of 1 was app | by the Regional Director, Minisiry of Corporate Affairs vide order
dated 28 May 2024. Tha cerlified cupy of the Order had been liled with Registrar of Companies. Mumbai on 21 June 2024, on which the Scheme became effective. Accordingly, the Company
had i for the nbination on using the Pooling of interest method in ! with the app scheme as per Appendix C of Ind AS 103, Business

Combinations of Entilies under Cummun Contral, The affect of the same was accounted for in (he previous year.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has ibed ar il for o ies under the proviso lo Rule 3(1) of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 inserted by the Companies
{Accounts) Amendment Rules 2021 reguiring companies. which uses accounting software for maintaining its books of account, shall use only such accounting software which has a feature of
recording audit trail of each and every lransaction, crealing an edit log of each change made in the books of account along with the date vhen such changes were made and ensuring that the
audil frail cannol be disabled and the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the stalutory requi s for record

The Company has used an i for mai g ils books of account which has a fealure of recording audit trail {edit log) facility at the application level and the same has been
oparated throughout the year. Funhzr the audil frail (adil log) featum was enabled al the dalabase level lo log any direct dala changes w.e.l from 14 November 2024, However, the Company
disables audil irail at dalabase level for a few days at every month end for billing purposes.

The audit trail, | has been preserved by the Company as per the statulory requirements for record retention where the audil irail feature was enabled,

These are the noles refarred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
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Firm Reg ion No. 00107 13
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